)id Germany Incite Austria in 19147
New Evidence on the War Guilt Controversy

The continuing importance of the controversy over the complex problem of
war guilt in 1914, with all its varied ramifications and interrelations, and its
effect upon the post-war psychology of a number of the European Powers of
today, and on the success of the great movement toward world peace, amply
justify the publication of the symposium herewith presented.

This symposium bears on two chief questions vitally important for any
. adequate judgment of the charges brought against Germany and Au.stria as the
~ chief culprits in the great tragedy of 1914: (1) How far was Auvstria-Hungary
~ justified in her aggression on Serbia after the Sarajevo assassination, and (2)
o what extent did Germany support, encourage, or even incite Austria in her
~ anti-Serbian action?

Professor Harry Elmer Barnes, Professor of Historical Sociology at Smith
College and well known as the chief exponent in the United States of the new
~ “pevisionist” school of historical interpretation of World War origins, leads the
symposium with an article based on recent personal contacts and conversations
~ with the chief actors in the great drama of 1914—with Count Leopold Berch-
~ told, former Austro-Hungarian Foreign Minister; with Count Alexander Hoyos,
. Chief of Cabinet of the Austro-Hungarian Foreign Ministry in 1914; with Dr.
. Friedrich von Wiesner, legal counsellor of the Foreign Ministry and Austrian
- official investigator of the Sarajevo assassination in 1914; with the German
statesmen Gottlieb von Jagow, former Foreign Minister, and Alfred Zimmer-
‘mann, former German Under-Secretary of State. Professor Barnes also had
lengthy interviews with the former Kaiser and the Crown Prince on the subject
of the German attitude toward Austrian policy with respect to Serbia. All
'121'1esel Austrian and German authorities are cited by Professor Barnes in his
article.

- On receiving Professor Barnes’s study, the editor of CURRENT HisTory had
it set up in type and transmitted to each of the German and Austrian statesmen
- quoted by the American historian. The replies and comments received follow
Professor Barnes’s article. ;

Finally, the symposium is concluded by an article by Michael T. Florinsky,
associate of Professor James T. Shotwell, Director of the Division of History
and Economics, Carnegie Endowment for International Peace. Dr. Florinsky
- in this study takes the view that the “new evidence” presented by Professor
‘Barnes in no way diminishes the implication of Germany’s responsibility for not
“holding Austria back in the fateful days following the Sarajevo assassination
and leading directly to the World War. '

~ The group of articles herewith are the first of a series of articles on
- War responsibility to appear in consecutive issues of this magazine. In August
wiere will be published an important article by Alfred von Wegerer, editor of
e K_riegsschuldfrage, the well-known (official) German review devoted to the
question of war guilt, attacking the findings of the International Versailles
Qommission of Fifteen, which laid before the Preliminary Peace Conference in
Harch, 1919, a report on the authors of the World War, on the ground that the
fommission’s report was based on inadequate evidence; this article was sent by
i€ editor of CURRENT HISTORY to all the original members of this commission
“OF comment, and when published will be accompanied by all the replies re-
“€lved; in addition a well-known historian will reply to Dr. von Wegerer.

Lastly, in a subsequent issue will appear a striking debate on war guilt be-
o Cen two eminent official spokesmen for France and Germany, respectively:
i?}:ator Henri de Jouvenel argues the case for France and her allies; Dr. Fried-
2 Von Rosen that for Germany and Austria, Each party to the debate was
S1Ven an opportunity for rebuttal of his opponent’s arguments. The whole de-

bate iy comprise fully 35,000 words—EDITOR OF CURRENT HISTORY MAGAZINE.
a1




[—Germany Not Responsible for Austpig

Action
By HARRY ELMER BARNES

PROFESSOR OF HISTORICAL Soc10LoGY, SMITH COLLEGE

Herr von Jagow and Professor Ber-

nadotte Schmitt in the December,
1927, number of CURRENT HISTORY deals
with one of the most crucial problems relat-
ed to the question of responsibility for the
World War. The writer of the present arti-
cle was able during the Summer of 1926 and
1927 to gather a considerable body of revo-
lutionary evidence on this subject which was
not accessible to either Herr von Jagow or
Professor Schmitt. This information, he
believes, will add much to the documentary
material available in the premises and will
clear up for all time the major issues in-
volved in the relation of Germany to the
behavior of Austria during the ecrisis of
1914. This is'a matter of great importance

THE exchange between his Excellency

the Autumn of 1927, Sazonov still accused
Germany of primary responsibility for
bringing on the war, and based this accusa-
tion upon the assertion that Germany in-

Hungary in this area.

toward Serbia in 1914. It is well-known
that in 1914 Paléologue constantly insisted,
in his conversations with Sazonov, that

aggression of Austria. This is admitted

marked influence upon Sazonov’s early de-
termination for war. This article and the

the Entente apologia.

In the first place, it is doubtful if any
one can get far in this problem merely
by calling attention to minor falsifications
and misrepresentations by diplomats in
1914, which is the procedure followed for
the most part by Professor Schmitt. There
can be little doubt that Herr von Jagow
may have misrepresented many details, such 1914,
as dates of the receipt of information,
though it would appear certain that his

RENT HISTORY are thoroughly sound and
well substantiated by the documents. Yet

against Herr von Jagow alone. We would

falsifications in his appeal to Great Brit-
620

ain at the end of July,
flagrant falsifications o
mobilizations, to Sazonoy’
his reports to the Czar,
ward Grey’s complete misrepres
Germany’s proposals in regard to or Germ
and France in his speech of Au -
to have compelling evidence that S
Wotton’s definition of a diplom
honest man sent abroad to lie
terests of his country” still held
a description of foreign secrets
ambassadors in the great crisi
We shall lay aside in this arti
sonal incriminations and try to
clearly and briefly the salient faef
situation. In the period preceding t
jevo murder Austria had captur
in settling the question of war responsibility. coded a large number of impo:
As late as the publication of his memoirs in  matic telegrams revealing the
machinations of Russia and f
kan States against the interests o

f the dat ppress
s falsifie,
and to

June, 1914, were almost as well a
itiated and encouraged the Austrian policy Hartwig’s intrigues against the
archy as we can be today from
of the relevant documents in thi
archives. The statesmen of the
Germany was the real culprit behind the archy had become convinced by
mer of 1914 that Rumania could
by students of war guilt to have had a be trusted as the chief ally of
Powers in the Balkans, and dee
she must be supplanted by Bu
accompanying comments will show how little was, of course, recognized tha
ground there is for this classic contention in  chief ally in these subversive sch
Serbia, and the Austrians were pa
disturbed over the fact that ¢
Minister in Belgrade was decis
Serb and had been able to Ccoi
Kaiser to at least a henign at
ward the Serbian cause. {
situation when the Archduke F
nand was murdered at the end ¢

A few days after the murder of
duke, Count Leopold Berchtold,
general contentions in his article in CUR- trian Foreign Minister, sent his ¥
sociate, Count Alexander Hoyos
to request a promise of Germar
this is not a charge which can be made in the impending crisis with Ser

Hoyos arrived in Berlin on July !
only need to call attention to Poincaré’s Austrian request for German Su
presented to the Kaiser at

:Jaus von Szogyény, the Aus- ~
at L%if;ador to Germany. Hoyos him-
'.Amented the Austrian case to Acting
¢ Minister Zimmerman and Chan-
Bethmann—llollweg. The Austr%an
. poiled down to this: The Serbian

e had reached a point where it must
ed, in all probability by physicz_xl
if allowed to go on unchecked, it
1 inevitably produce the d_estructlon of
s Hungary and in this way lose
any her chief ally. Hoyos and
v further emphasized the fact that
ld be much safer to face the Serbian
e by war in 1914 than at any later
They held that delay meant better
ation on the part of Russia and a
ing of the Franco-Russian alliance
e English-Russian understanding.
w years the forceful punishment of
would be almost certain to entail
intervention and a European war.
014, particularly in view of the atro-
murder of the Archduke, this chastise-
of Serbia might be achieved without
amity of a general European conflict.
ny added to this practical argument
interview with the Kaiser on July 5
al personal and sentimental plea of
¢ loyalty of the Hohenzollern to the
urg—of the virile Wilhelm to the
and venerable Franz Josef.

German authorities all agreed with-
sitation as to the justice of Austria’s
and as to the logic with which it had
Presented to Germany. Accordingly,
y made her famous promise to sup-
ustria in whatever policy she found
ssary to undertake in order to insure
fety against Serbia and Russian in-
€S in the Balkans. Bethmann-Hollweg
L the Kaiser felt certain that an Aus-
L War on Serbia would not be likely to
€ a European war, but Zimmerman
€r more pessimistic in this regard,

fapable of defeating any potential en-
=10 the event of a European war.

1 THE Duar MONARCHY’S PERIL

followi'ng is the core of the whole
Austrig contended that she could not
€ to exist without decisively sup-
g the Serbian menace. Germany ac-
t he IS interpretation and concluded
+0 T interests made it necessary for
S DUPPort Austria rather than to take
; of the ultimate disintegration of
= and only powerful ally. In long
R nk interviews during the Summer of
With Count Berchtold, Count Hoyos
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he believed Germany and Austria -

HARRY ELMER BARNES

and Dr. Friedrich von Wiesner, the three
most important Austrian diplomats of 1914,
the writer was assured by each of these
men personally and independently that Aus-
tria must rest her case before the bar of
historical judgment solely upon the accu-
racy of her major contention that the Ser-
bian menace threatened the very integrity
of the dual monarchy and could not be suc-
cessfully withstood except through a puni-
tive war against the Serbs or complete Ser-
bian acquiescence in the ultimatum of July
23, 1914. They admitted frankly that they
foresaw the possibility of a European war
arising out of such action, though they did
not believe such complications probable.
But they felt it better to accept the chance
of a European war than to face what
seemed to them certain ruin if they failed
to aceept the Serbian challenge. This is
a view which further evidence seems to
have subsequently vindicated as reasonable
and just when viewed from the Austrian
angle.

There are some who admit that the Aus-
trian case is a strong one in the light of
the knowledge we possess today, but they
contend that the Austrian action in 1914
was not justified by the knowledge pos-
sessed by the Austrian Foreign Office at
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the time of the outbreak of the World War.
Such writers base their position primarily
upon the allegation that all the information
which Count Berchtold had in his possession
in July, 1914, was Dr. von Wiesner’s brief
telegraphic report on the Sarajevo murder,
which, they allege, Berchtold suppressed
lest Germany and the world should discover
how little evidence existed of Serbian com-
plicity in the assassination of Franz Ferdi-
nand. Indeed, many support this view on
the assumption that the only knowledge pos-
sessed by Berchtold was the brief passage
of the Wiesner report which was torn from
the context by James Brown Scott and Rob-
ert Lansing at Paris and gives the impres-
sion that Dr. von Wiesner welieved Serbia
utterly innocent in 1914.

As an actual matter of fact, the Austrian

case against Russia and Serbia in 1914 was
far stronger than even most scholars
imagine. In the first place, the complete
Wiesner report shows that in 1914 Austria
was certain that the assassins came from
Serbia into Bosnia, had been trained and
armed by Serbian officers and had been
“able to pass into Bosnia with the, con-
nivance of the Serbian guards on the bor-
der. Further, Wiesner’s real report to
Berchtold in 1914 was not this brief pre-
liminary telegraphic summary, which was
designed only to serve pending his return,
but a very thorough and complete oral
statement presented to Berchtold and his
associates after Wiesner came back to
Vienna from Sarajevo. Berchtold did not
suppress the Wiesner report at all, but
merely examined it, noted its contents and
then filed it awaiting the return of his
commissioner with the full oral report. So
complete and convincing was Wiesner’s oral
report that it was the chief thing which
converted Count Tisza to the support of a
much more vigorous policy toward Serbia
than he had been willing to sanction a week
earlier.

RUSS0-BALKAN PLOTS

But Austria was not even limited to the
full verbal report of Dr. von Wiesner. For
several years before 1914 the Austrians had
captured and deceded a great many very
important telegrams revealing Russian in-
trigues in the Balkans and the develop-
ment of the Serbian plots against Austria.
In particular, they had thorough knowl-
edge that Hartwig, the Russian Minister
in Serbia, was pursuing an authorized
policy in directing the Russo-Balkan plots
at the expense of Austria. Count Berch-
told informed the writer in the Summer of
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1927 that the material in thege
telegrams was regarded by the A
Foreign Office in 1914 as more
more incriminating with respect to
than the report of Dr. von Wie
for reasons which are appavent j,
not make public the sources of
formation in the Summer of 1914
also the writer’s privilege during
Summer to have a long conversa
Dr. M. Bogitschevich, the co
Serbian . publicist who has done
to clear up the facts about the
plot and the activities of the Black
He had just come from a complete ey
nation of the Russian Archives co
the pre-war dispatches between Ser
Russia, and he stated that this mat
thoroughly confirmed Count Berchi
suspicions in regard to the poli
activities of Hartwig. Therefo:
who condemn Austrian action in
the ground that all she knew a
about Serbia supported the theo:
complete innocence and benevoler
Serbia are sadly ignorant of
facts. So much for the case of
We may now consider that much ¢
issue as to how far Austrian p
activities in the crisis of 1914 were
by the attitude of Germany. It is
to remember at this point that
element in the Franco-Russian
against Germany is the allegatie
Austrian policy in regard to Se
originated by and forced upon Au
Germany. The writer questioned
told, Hoyos and Wiesner in detai
point. It will be conceded by all »
persons at the outset that th )
statesmen of 1914 would not be lik
beyond the facts in clearing
essential responsibility for Austrid
cedure. If they were to distort the
they would certainly be likely to d
the purpose of making the ultimat
sibility seem that of Germany I
Austria. When they accept the ré
ity themselves, any one but the mo
tent Hun-baiter is likely to admit
are keeping well within the bounds
The Austrian statesmen above
frankly admitted that the appeal |
Germany by Count Hoyos had been
lated by the Austrians quite indep!
any German participation. Ger
no effort to dictate any new €
Austrian policy, but simply co!
support the plan which Austria
and whatever subsequent additions

T

P eal it

qust decl

ny, and perhaps even place in jeopardy

etermined ally elsewhere.
\ffected the Austrian program in 1914, as

m her Serbian policy.
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never in the slightest doubt as to the sin-
cerity of German peace efforts from this
time (July 29) onward or that Germany
meant what she said in her pressure
telegrams.

The second count against Germany in
this regard has been the charge that
Tschirschky did not present the German
communications of restraint to Berchtold
with promptness and correctness and that
he persistently urged the Austrians toward
bellicose measures. Berchtold stated to the
writer that Tschirschky, on the contrary,
presented the German communications with
promptness and accuracy, although declar-
ing that the pacific policy which Germany
suddenly adopted at the close of July—
necessitated by the danger of British inter-
vention—carried with it great peril to the
success of Austrian action against Serbia.
The bellicosity which Tschirschky had shown
up to this time had exerted no practical ef-
fect upon Austrian policy, as Berchtold
‘had himself decided upon his policy in the
circumstances and stuck to this line of action
until there was imminent danger of British
intervention.

The third and final count in the indict-
ment of Germany is to be found in the
allegation that the telegrams of General
von Moltke to Conrad von Hoetzendorff
on the night of July 30 and the morning
of July 31, urging the Austrians to mobilize
and refuse mediation, were what nullified
the effect of the pressure of the German
civil Government upon Austria to accept
mediation of the Serbian issue and to open
direct negotiations with St.  Petershurg.
With reference to the Moltke telegrams
Berchtold denied that they had a decisive in-
fluence on his action, adding that his re-
mark involving uncertainty as to whether
Bethmann or Moltke was in control in Berlin
was made only as a result of irritation over
the seemingly divided counsel in German
circles. On the other hand, Berchtold stated
that he had never broken off negotiations
with St. Petersburg, and that he was led to
make his well-known decision of July 31 to
agree to mediation of the Austro-Serbian
dispute because of the growing probability
of British adherence to the cause of France
and Russia.

One of the most interesting things which
the writer discovered in his discussion of
the diplomacy of 1914 with the Austrian
diplomats was that the German pressure
telegrams had almost no influence upon the
Austrian diplomacy at the close of July,
1914. The Austrians had little doubt that
Germany would stick .by them in the event

sary to make in the light of added
on and changed circumstances.
in Germany’s answer to Hoyos"s
was explicitly stated that Austria
ide what procedure would be neces-
o and desirable in eliminating‘.the Ser-
menace. As Hoyos explained the
the Austrian Foreign Office after
5 ret’urn in no sense felt that (?ermany
dictating the policy of Austria. The
inant feeling in Vienna was that, after
ria had stated to Germany that her
against Serbia was a desperate one
"3 after she had received the German
omise of support on the baglg of this
wtion, she must take decisive steps
+ Serbia and refrain from backing
in her demands. Otherwise she
11d be likely to lose the respect of Ger-

) nece£§
rma t1
fact,

Austro-German  alliance.  Indeed,
chky, the German Ambassador in
nna, once stated to the Austrians t}_lat
hey did back down Germany would find

essary to secure a stronger and more
But, as Berch-
and Hoyos admitted,” this in no way

ija had no intention of backing down

fter having received this initial prom-
from Germany, Austria worked out her
atum to Serbia without any direct
n knowledge or participation and sub-
ed it in exactly the form which she
ived without giving Germany adequate
nce knowledge or asking her for advice
e subject. Likewise, in deciding to
the Serbian answer and to make war
rbia, Austria acted on her own respon-
ty and followed a line of procedure

bosed to the views of the Kaiser on this
hject,

CASE AGAINST GERMANY

Aliere have been three major counts
St Germany to support the thesis that
€gged on the Austrians. One relates to
amous Szogyény telegram of July 27,
ich Szdgyény is purported to say that
Jagow had instructed him to tell the
an Foreign Office that Germany 'in
sympathized with the British peace
0sals and merely passed them on to
a as a matter of form. Count
told stated that this had no other
than to confirm him in pursuing his
ided action against Serbia until he
ed through Berlin of the probability of
M0 intervention. He stated that he was
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of a European war and they were not conference with Berchtold, in th
afrald. of such a war unless Great Britain  which Dumaine told Bercl,ﬂ:old te-
came in. Hence the real reason why they  just been talking with Schebekg. +
consented to the mediation plan on July 81 sian Ambassador in Vienn b
was the conviction that Great Britain was  stated that both he and S;; :
likely to be their opponent in the event agreed that there wag very Ii'ctlee
of a European war. Likewise, a main rea- indeed that France and Russiap
son for their confidence in the previous  beyond diplomatic brotests in the
weeks was the definite feeling that Great the prospective Austrian polj 1
Britain would be neutral. Here, and here to Serbia. [See also AusIt’ ol
only, is there the basis for valid criticism Vol. 1, No. 53.] Coming onm;:z .
of Germany. The German Foreign Office transmission of the Austrian u? .
had not informed the Austrian Foreign Serbia, this had a profound g
Office up to July 29, 1914, that the Ger- Berchtold and made him feel 3
mans planned to invade Belgium in the secure in submitting the ultimm
event of war with France. final form. Still further Sira
Therefore, it is apparent upon the basis Bunsen, the British Amba;sador
of the best Austrian opinion that the Aus- had been extremely friendly to
trian statesmen reached their decisions in  anq had made him fee] very co
an independent f4shion, on the basis of their  Great Britain would not interven
conception of Austrian needs and imterests indifference to the Austro-Serbi
and that Germany has no direct responsi-  still further confirmed this view
bility in these circumstances. As the above Fven more significant, shortly
mentioned Austrian statesmen frequently  trig submitted her ul’timatum to
insisted to the writer, Austria’s case before g member of the staff of th :
the world rests upon the accuracy of the Embassy in Vienna, received a
Austrian indictment of Russia and her from the Vienna Neue Freie P
Balkan allies, and her responsibility cannot  him that he had read the ult
be traced to German initiative. Germany thoroughly approved of it in both
acquiesced in the Austrian plans until very letter, asserted that Great Britai
late in the crisis and the German Tesponsi- mever forget the friendly attitude

tely essential if Austria was to succeed bly the possibilit:,y and p.robabilivty of the
. - taining her integrity, and Germany Franco-Russian intervention which Would
g that she could in no sense afford be the sole cause of a European conflict.
There is only one observation which the
writer desires to make which is directly re-
lated to Professor Schmitt’s article. It can
scarcely be regarded as consonant with
candor and directness to refer to the early
Austrian consideration of the possibility of
territorial partition of Serbia without call-
ing attention to the fact that the Austrians
later decisively abandoned this scheme, re-
peatedly assured the Russians that they
- : : b ars would respect the territorial integrity of
e su;‘)ps(:lt '(I)\iei;lfssgz ?ge;hgeftugzliffg Serbia, and received a confession from
Chwlﬁ:té\.rer in urgin’g the Austrians to Sazonov that he was satisfied upon this
:llllea d with their plans and in promising  point. On this point the writer is able to
man support in their execution. Neither  offer new and first hand information. In a
w nor the Kaiser approved of the Aus- letter to the authgr’of this article, Count
ultimatum in detail, but the Kaiser Friedrich von Szépary, Austrian Ambas-
not see it until too late to protest and sador in St. Pete'zrsburg in 1914, shows
w did not feel that he could very well clearly that Austria gave Russia adequate
est in the light of the previous German  assurance that she did not contemplate a
rances. The Kaiser, as is well krown War of aggression against Serbia and that
the documents, decisively disapproved ~she would respect the territory and sov-
ustria’s rejection of the Serbian reply —ereignty of Serbia. This is also compatible
her ultimatum, but once again he did With the documents in the Austrian Red
feel like open protest because of his Book and No. 223 of the Russian Orange
g commitment. It is highly unlikely, Book, as well as with Count Széesen’s article
wever, that any of the prominent Ger- in the Kriegsschuldfrage for February, 1926.
felt any very deep concern over the We quote the relevant portion of Count
nvolved in the Austrian policy until Szapary’s letter:

olU
m

d 3 J
: ;;iemplate in a passive fashion the dis-

ation of her chief ally. Being con-
ed of the necessity qf vigorous 'Aus-
action against Serbia, they believed
would be far safer for the peace of
ope if undertaken in 1914 than it would
initiated at a later time when the Rus-
military preparations would be near to
pletion and when the French opinion
d be more adequately brought around

b}ixliistyseltinl;ZWii?esitsi(g? undtlcl)ptzery c}c?selyfwti}tlh e N g2t ar}d A ‘began to look as if Italy might desert “I can assure you most decidedly that,
Austrian c?mtentionz_s She eb;z:dl(fef sup‘-a ff,){ Eiléefml‘l,at Cireat Bnta%‘n. Wolls Triple Alliance and Great Britain knowing the actual decision of the Austro-
ort of Austri th tion t o oo suppoTh HES Bt go to the aid of France and Russia. ~ Hungarian Council of Ministers, all my con-
ph‘ Austri Siria upon the assumption that Count Hoyos confirmed quite b " versations with Sazonov were conducted in a
the Austrian contentions were sound. If dently the above assertions of C GERMAN DISAPPROVAL OF DELAY maﬁner which showed from the beginning

she believed this to be the case her attitude told as to the French, Russian
was, as even Professor Schmitt admits, assurances of the improbability
consistent. If the Austrian case was a  the event of Austrian action aga
sound one, then Germany cannot be blamed Berchtold, Hoyos and Wiesner all
for supporting it. If it was not a sound one, the belief, in all probability cox:
then Germany must be condemned to some these French, Russian and Bri
degree at least for not having discovered sentatives were thoroughly sincer
this fact in 1914 and restrained Austria be- they said, but were very badly inf
fore it was too late. to the secret policies of theil'ﬂ1
3 Governments. It is obvious th
jAUSTRIAN DipLoMATS’ OPTIMISM French, Russian and British assu
While Berchtold made it clear that Aus- non-intervention had as much influe
trian policy was decided upon primarily by the Autro-Hungarian diplomats
the Austrians without serious influence  did the alleged encouragement of
from outside, nevertheless he threw much  action by Germany.
new ].ight_upon the reasons for Austrian The writer also had an oppo
optimism in July, 1914, and for the Aus- consult at length the Kaiser,
trian persistence in adhering to a vigorous Prince and Herr von Jagow, the
policy against Serbia. Here the encourage-  Foreign Minister in 1914, with re
ment given by the representatives of Russia, the German attitude toward the -
France and Great Britain in Vienna was policy with respect to Serbia. Th
infinitely more potent than any informa- man authorities asserted that
tion or promises forwarded from Berlin. convinced after the murder of the
On July 22, 1914, Alfred Dumaine, the that Austria must act decisively
French Ambassador in Vienna, had a long  Serbia. They felt that such actio

; nother thing which was very clear from that our aection against Serbia was not in-
conversations of the writer with these tended as a war of conquest or for the pur-
ent Germans is that they very greatly pose of the establishment of a protectorate,
Pproved of the Austrian delay in taking and my German colleague, Count Pourtalés,
e steps against Serbia. They felt spoke to him in a similar vein. Fully aware
the quicker Austria struck the less the of the importance of this point and knowing
T of a Furopean war as a result of exactly the formal decisions of my Govern-
Co-Russian intervention, Quick and ment, I laid particular stress on this aspect
SIVe. action on the part of Austria of the question from the very day of the
' It was believed, give France and communication of the ultimatum to Russia,
.4 Tar less time to lay plans for inter- even before I had any formal instructions
on and a Buropean war. Further, to do so. I can offer most decisive con-
Y day of delay provided so much more firmation that this declaration was given
for Europe to recover from the first in a manner which could not be surpassed
9% the horrible crime at Sarajevo and in clearness or definiteness.
Us reduce the universal sympathy “Sazonov tried from the beginning to
ustria might exploit in her action diminish the value of these assurances by
nst $el'b'xa. Hence, Germany suggested arguing that the intended action of Austria
tria that she move promptly against instituted in itself a state of ‘vassalage’
but such advice was not for the for Serbia, as he expressed himself, and he
of bl‘inging on a general European always recurred to this argument without
€ real aim was exactly the op- being able to give a plausible reason for this
5 Namely, to induce sufficiently point of view. It is clear that Russia was
‘ Austrian action as to reduce nota- to such a degree responsible for Serhia’s

05
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policy toward Austria-Hungary, and that
she had encouraged Serbia in such a de-
cided manner against her neighbor, assuring
her of absolute protection in case of what-
ever consequences of this behavior, that
Russian intimidation of Awustria-Hungary
seemed the only way out of the impasse
created thereby.
“Unfortunately, the

Western Powers

[I—Austria’s Challenge Justified by Serbia

Menace
‘By COUNT LEOPOLD BERCHTOLD

FORMER AUSTRO-HUNGARIAN FOREIGN MINISTER

FAR from the political activities of the
European Continent, a few eminent
scholars in America have in recent times
taken on themselves the praiseworthy task
of attacking, sine ira et studio, the ques-
tion of war guilt, with the object of forming
an objective, independent judgment on this
complicated question through study of the
pertinent documents as well as through per-
sonal discussions with the leading states-
men of the critical period of 1914 to obtain
their point of view. One of these gentle-
men—Professor Harry Elmer Barnes—I
met last Summer and I was able to give
him some clarifying information on the
salient lines of the policy followed by us
[Austrial during this period. His article,
now published in CURRENT HiSTORY, shows
that he has used some of this information as
a basis for his exposition, with the result
that many one-sided, tendentious and false
interpretations which have gradually won
credence among the general public have
now been revealed in their true light. This
applies particularly to the motives which
forced us to the steps which we took against
Serbia in the Summer of 1914.

Quite rightly Professor Barnes empha-
sizes in this connection ‘our conviction at
that time—a conviction in no way weak-
ened by the subsequent course of events—
that the continuance of the Austro-Hun-
garian Monarchy was unthinkable without
a definitive elimination of the Serbian men-
ace. The view that the assassination of
Sarajevo constituted the only motive of our
action has been widely spread. Nothing
could be more erroneous. When in 1903
the Karageorgievich Dynasty came to power
in Serbia through the horrible and bloody

joined Russia in this attempt at int;

tion, instead of trying to ealm R
which, it is my firm conviction, a ¢le:
determined word of Sir Edward Gfey
have brought about. This seems to'
be the fundamental reason why war b
the Great Powers—which is to be
distinguished from war between

Hungary and Serbia—became inevita]

gazonov, in his recently published memoirs,

S says:

4 ly the control of the Croatian and Dal-
On 3;1 (i, e., Hungarian and Austrian)
matl% and further, an outlet to the Aegean
Coas could bring that satisfactory solution
8 ‘he economic question of which the Ser-
tia people had dreamed so many years,
‘b—’s‘dnfop which the Serbian Government had
ared from the moment when the real-
ze&m of the Greater-Serbia idea began
adually to penetrate into the field of po-
i ﬂcal possibilities.

And under d_ate of April 23, 1913, Sazo-
noy wrote to his Belgrade :Ambassadm.', von
Hartwig: “Serbia’s promised land lies in
the domain of present-day Austro-Hun-
; “Tnergetic work” should be “de-
“voted to preparing for the future inevitable
‘conflict. Make this clear to the Serbs.”
How deeply the loyal servant of his master
fook these instructions to heart may be
Jearned from Sazonov himself, who admits
that the Ambassador sometimes went fur-
ther in his agitation activities than his
superior intended.
The annexation, which occurred in 1908,
of the provinces of Bosnia and Herzegovina,
upied and held by us previously on the
ground of a European mandate, meant, as
well known, nothing else than the legal-
tion of an actual state of possession
ich had existed for decades and to which
were forced by the introduction of the
mstitutional régime in Turkey. The dec-
ation made at that time by Serbia at

€ end of the crisis conjured up by her
dnd fanned by Russia, to the effect that
€ [Serbial would unconditionally recog-
% the new legal status and would con-
e to live in friendly and neighborly

ions with the Monarchy, became a
d lefter, Instead of fulfilling the agreed

gation, the incitive propaganda now

Y began, so that the British Minister
the Court of Vienna, Sir Fairfax Cart-
Bht, certainly an impartial observer,
S able to remark as early as 1910 that
did not understand how the Monarchy
endure this for any great length of

that _the first favorable moment

€ seized to remove the menace of
: mé‘esﬂess_neighbor and that then we
: act quickly.
€r widespread historical untruth,
P Say a propaganda lie, is combated
. 'ofessor Barnes with well-justified
Ness, viz., that the deliberately short-
stiEilspatch of Wiesner of July 13, 1914,

n;;lted the sole basis of our action
» ES Serbia. Apart from the fact that

SSential part of this telegraphic com-

Loary.”

deed of which King Alexander of the H
of Obrenovich and his Queen were
tims, the new Dynasty was bound to fi
the Greater Serbia program of the o
ization of officers to which it oy
throne—a program the realization of
was based on the destruction of the i
boring Monarchy and had this
object. Then began upon our
the underground activity which, emas
from secret Serbian organizations
the benevolent patronage of the B
Government, made its influence
irredentist, subversive action and I
sively prepared the way for the s
of all territories of the Austro-Hu
Monarchy inhabited by Southern S
The danger of this movement to th
of our nation was bound to be enhane
the fact that Russian diplomacy
ately assumed its moral direction
assured it a powerful backing.
sprang less from altruistic moti
favorite demand for the independen
tional development of the Balkan St
than from what was the true aim, ¢

control of Constantinople and the
I shall not go into further here, A€
is that the former Russian Ambassado Id
Belgrade acted as the spiritus Tect
this subversive policy, partly in ace
with the thoroughly considered i »
given him from the Pevchesky Most |
eign Officel at St. Petersburg, |
under the local influence of the.
istic atmosphere of Belgrade. In thi
nection we do not have merely to
our information service, through Wi
were constantly informed of this sl
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muniqué was passed over in silence in 1919
by the American delegation [to the Paris
Peace Conferencel, namely, the part estab-
lishing the relation between the attentat
and individual Serbian officers and Gov-
ernment officials, also the tolerance of the
Greater Serbia propaganda shown by the
Government, it must also be pointed out
that other sources of information were at
our command, which, because of their
character, could not be introduced into an
open discussion.

Lastly, let the pregnant summary of
our attitude toward Serbia be approved,
wherein Professor Barnes states
that the Serbian menace threatened the
very integrity of the Dual Monarchy and
could not be successfully withstood except
through punitive war against the Serbs or

complete Serbian acquiescence in the ulti-
matum of July 23, 1914.

The demands made on Serbia in the note
in question contained the minimum of those
guarantees which under the given circum-
stances we considered necessary fcr assur-
ing the future existence of the Monarchy.
Hence, we had before us only one alterna-
tive: Integral acceptance of those demands
or an appeal to the ultima ratio in the form
of a punitive wanr

Vienna, Austria.
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III—Russia Chief Culprit in Precipitati
of World War

By COUNT ALEXANDER HOYOS

CHIEF OF CABINET, AUSTRO-HUNGARIAN MINISTRY OF FOREIGN
AFFAIRS IN 1914; HeAp oF MISSION TO BERLIN 10 BRING
AUSTRIAN APPEAL FOR GERMAN SUPPORT IN J ULy, 1914

in over Russia’s advances in Asia, the tious. We had had many far better oppor-
s and Khyber Pass or Tibet. And yet tunities for coming to blows with our un-
s poundaries between possible peace and  yuly neighbor. We could have solved the
» were very clearly drawn in these inter-  question in 1909 by attacking Serbia during
ional disputes. Both Russia and France the Bosnian crisis. There is no doubt that
w that asking for the impossible meant  at the beginning of the Balkan War every
and that the issues in controve}‘SY one in Western Europe expected Austrian
be avoided as long' as no 1'efjllr vital  demands for parts of Macedonia. Austria,
yest of their respective countries was however, was bound to a policy of peace and
ened. non-expansion. Our modest demand for the
creation of a free and independent Albanian
RUSSIA’S AGGRESSIV?‘ .POLICY IN 1914 3 State after the outbreak of the Balkan War
1914 Russia’s position was a very dif-  there were more in Italian than in Austrian
t one. Her successful system of jinterest. We now know that the secret un-
es had opened opportunities, even derstanding signed between Italy and Rus-
' 110 purel_y Russian mte1:est was 11 gia after the meeting at Racconigi had ar-
An active and aggressive element ranged for the independence of Albania.
came into Russia’s foreign POIIQB’- Austria was handcuffed in her Eastern
ov knew that France and Great Brit- policy by her wish for peace, by Germany’s
would have to support him in any 18- dread of any Balkan adventures, by Italian
that Germany could be drawn in also.  jealousy and by Russia’s paramount control
eld all the trump cards in his hand, of Southeastern Europe after the peace of
d also realized that never again would RBycharest. The weaker Austria’s position
an opportunity return for revenge pecame, the more the- hopes of all those
Austria and the fulfillment of epe strengthened, who looked upon the
ilar Slav ambltion.s. ! ; Austro-Hungarian monarchy as a dying or-
'] !;11 aix psychczlloglcal point (:if IVIGV‘lf:kno ganism and who were only waiting for it
who has rea azonov’s and Izvolski’s to die.
noirs can doubt that to those two men, As the position presented itself to Aus-
r with Austria and Germany meant the trian Diplomacy after the Archduke’s mur-
ortunity of revenge for personal insults der at Sarajevo there was only one way of
wrongs whic}} they felt that Aehren- protecting our Southeastern States from
.B(')’sman policy had i.nflicf:ed on them.  Serbian aggression, and that was to prove
18,7 says Sazonov in his memoirs, to our neighbors that we were resolved to
Pt the peace in 1908 in order to save defend them. Though the chances for the:
e from a general war, and because outbreak of a European war through any
not recovered financially or from action on our part were very great, they
tary point of view from her defeats had to be risked, and under the circum-
; Wusso-Japanese War.” In 1914 the gstances the possibility that a European war
ion had changed, Russia had restored might be avoided were certainly greater
ences and army, and there was no  than they would have beea 2 year or two
Necessity for “saving the peace of later, when Austria’s position would be still
-9 b : weaker and our enemies would have gained
1 a's position was a very different in military strength. This was one of the
agl(‘i fge :i'el?rs follow11ng tl}: ﬁoinian reasons why Germany approved our action.
volski’s quarrel wit ehren-

; solﬁhhad been watching a situation on INTERVENTION INEVITABLE
4 eastern frontier, that meant a Many people think that the fact that
A anger from year to year. ' Saz-  Great Britain signed an agreement with
stemOIrs trace a very clear picture Germany on Colonial matters shortly before
Stages that marked the progress of the eventful days of August, 1914, might
h;i‘ UStl‘I{m campaign. The secret un- have brought about a change in the inter-
INg with TItaly, the block of the national situation of Europe and thus have
8 ates and their war with Turkey, hindered the outbreak of war later on, had
€€ of Bucharest and Sazonov’s Germany acted with greater caution at the
v ‘;1 :%;ﬁ.ce}s; to Rumanian s’cates}lzleill time. T cannot agree with this view.

shlights in a development whic Britain’s safet her
Zed Wasgbound, soonerpor later, to with France a%lddeRpslslgi:,d aosn 101?; (:Iste?}fg
against Serbia. Russian statesmen would Egypt, Fashoda and the Boer Wi AT with Austria, German fleet remained a menace to British
also not have had to suffer any loss of the anxiety that long prevailed a g:otia the moment for a settlement  sea power. The tragic feature of the situa-
T K - “ISpute with Serbia was not propi- tion lay in the fact that in order to keep

ROFESSOR BARNES’S interesting prestige by a peaceful attitude,
study appears to me to be so lucid and  were bound to play a leading pa
convincing that I do not feel that anything  subsequent settlement of our g
I could add would throw any further light Serbia. After a few days of fig!
on the subject which he has studied so sia could very well have intervened
thoroughly. of Serbia. There is no doubt that
I should like, however, to lay more stress 3 line been followed, Germany :
on one feature in the situation of 1914, have dreamed of shielding Austria
which so far has been somewhat kept in ing such intervention.
the background or taken for granted as an The reason why such a plan of
inevitable fatality. No one quite reahz(_as inacceptable to Russian Statesmé
vet that Austria’s quarrel with Serbia a peaceful attitude would have -
might have remained a local disturbance on rificing the strong strategical
the Balkan Peninsula if Russian states- which Russia had attained in I
men, bad not seized this opportunily for pojyies” by the aid of et
beginning a World War. During the War  puance, her understanding with G
I met a British diplomatist to whom, in 5 " 4 Italy, and her control of
discussing war origins, I pointed out that , 4 Rumanian foreign policy
our situation in 1914 had closely resembled peace of Bucharest. To unders
that of the British Government before the sia’s action the psychological fact
Boer War. His answer was: “Yes, but y, considered. Russian statesme
there was no danger of a European War working up to a climax of nationa
breaking out if we fought the Boers.” This bition since Izvolski decided after
is clearly an argument that must be con- so-Japanese war that an active
tested by those who know how matters {10 Near East with the aim of t
really stood. No country in the world was stantinople must be again attem
more peaceful, no country had more Teason  yetyrn to active Panslavism or Pa
to avoid a European war than Austria. proved successful. Russian infl
But we could not remain neutral onlookers prestige gained ground in all
when a small State like Serbia began work- questions. Never again, from a
ing with bombs, assassins and treacherous point of view, could the internation
propaganda, with the clear intention of tjon he more favorable for the
separating our Southern States from the ,f Russia’s imperialistic dreams,
Habsburg Monarchy. There were no limi- zonoy and Izvolski, though they
tations to Serbia’s action as long as Serbian  wished to postpone the outbreak o
statesmen could shield themselves behind fop g year or two, in order that me
the belief that Awustria would keep the tegic railways might be built, wer
European peace at any sacrifice. never in doubt as to the nece
Russia did not decide on war in order to  their point of view, of beginning
save Serbia. There were many other far War when our ultimatum in
more effective ways of doing this, even had them a favorable opportunity.
it come to an armed conflict between Aus- pever any question of any ren
tria-Hungary and Serbia. I personally very their part in the interest of Europ
much doubt that this would have been the Enmities between nations are
case had Russia refused help to Serbia exist in international politics. Wi
after the Austrian ultimatum. Russia’s remember the strain between G
territorial or economic interests were mo- and France during the latter hs
wise threatened by any action on our part 19th century, the excitement there
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this insurance against Germany intact,
British statesmen had to countenance poli-
cies in Europe on the part of Russia, and
also of France, that were a danger to Euro-
pean peace. Personally I am inclined to
believe that Sir Edward Grey was thinking
of a change, when he saw that war was im-
minent. His remark to the German Ambas-
sador in London: “If you help us once more
to maintain the peace of Europe I foresee
an entire change in our relations,” would

IV—Austria’s Life and Death Stru.

Apainst Irredentism
By DR. FRIEDRICH VON WIESNER

LEecAL COUNSELOR, AUSTRO-HUNGARIAN FOREIGN MINISTRY IN 1914; OFFICIAL
INVESTIGATOR FOR AUSTRIA OF THE SARAJEVO ASSASSINATION

T HE position in which Austria-Hungary
found herself with respect to Serbia
and Rumania before the assassination of
Sarajevo is described by Professor Barnes
with absolute correctness. If, however, we
wish to survey the then-prevailing situation
of the Danube Monarchy as a whole, as
seems necessary for any judgment of the
decisions taken by the Austro-Hungarian
Government at that time, we must amplify
somewhat Professor Barnes’s exposition.
For beside the Greater Serbia and Greater
Rumania movements, there had existed for
vears outside of Austria two other irre-
dentist movements which also aimed at the
separation and annexation of territories of
the Dual Monarchy: The universally active
Italia Irredenta, which under the rally-
ing cry,“Trento e Trieste,” aspired to South
Tyrol and the Adriatic territory, and Rus-
sian irredentism, which wished to annex
Galicia and Upper Hungary to Russia.
Thus the Habsburg Empire was menaced
by four irredentist movements abroad, all
of which adopted the pretext that they must
free their compatriots living on Austro-
Hungarian territory. No analogous sep-
aratist tendencies of broad national scope
within the empire corresponded to these
nationalistic movements abroad. The agita-
tion movements abroad had gradually suc-
ceeded in winning over single individuals or
groups in Austro-Hungary, but the broad
masses of nationalities aspired only to ex-
tension of their national rights within the
framework of the monarchy. On the other
hand, it was not to be denied that the work
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= two great trials conducted in Vienna
A gram the Government strove to
through the invisible net in which
tried to enmesh the Habsburg Em—
and vender it defenseless. The Fried-
rial failed, because the documents by
the anti-Austrian activities of the
nski Jug” Club were to be demon-
ed were proved not to be genuine. But
» we know that the activity of the
nski Jug,” as later that of the
dna Odbrana,” subsequently founded,
.d at bringing about a state of revolu-
“in the Southern Slav regions of
o Hungary, and that the Serbian
<es who hastened to the trial bore
» witness when they defended the afore-
elub against this charge. Exposed to
vidious comments of a considerable
of the world press, this trial led to
opposite of what had been desired in
ha. In the eyes of general public opin-
Qerbia seemed to have been cleared of
spicion that a revolutionary move-
in the Southern Slav regions of
tria-Hungary had been carried on there.
second trial, the trial for high treason
gram, led, however, in some single
es, to positive results, but because of
cerity of the accused and of many
sses, and the tactics of the counsel for
fense, did not bring forth the general
cation that was expected. The Serbo-
propaganda abroad was clever enough
ise this trial, also, to the disadvantage
he Danube Monarchy through malicious
retation of the facts.
§ the defense of the Danube Mon-
against the Serb revolutionary Irre-
Ust agitation by the agencies of diplo-
and publicity had failed. It was quite
Ping with the aggressive character of
> movement that after the close of the
i War it became even more intensi-
The attempt by Jukich to kill Royal
fssioner von Cuvaj (1912), and of
t to kill Baron Skerlecz at Agram
Pointed clearly to Serbian inspira-
3 Rt}liab]e information indicated that
er!)lan Irredenta, in agreement with
htial Russian circles, wished to strike
ve })lows against the monarchy.
1IN its large features was Austria-
AIY’s situation early in 1914. The
& U2 Government must have realized
. these Irvedentist activities which,
& acconigi and the Peace of Bucharest,
Ogically fitted into the international
85, would some day lead to an at-
9 would give rise to international
#cations, But though Vienna clearly

seem to indicate this. And yet it
cult to believe. that Germany
renounced her ambitions on the }
or that France and Russia woul,
cepted a diplomatic defeat of t
One thing must be borne in mj
laws of self-preservation Grea
to come into the war, as soon ag
bility of Germany’s overrunning
gaining the Atlantic seaboard .

Vienna, Austria, '

of sedition carried on by the fo:
saries had in the last years been
and had gained ground. The |
authorities of Autria-Hungary
exactly informed of the success
dentist propaganda, as all these
followed the methods of secret co
Only now and then could one
into the workings of this activi
which I conducted in 1910 as
ney, of the Trient Irredentist ¢
Colpi, and that of the Russian
in Upper Hungary and East
laid bare the underground ae
Russian Panslavist, Count Bobri
deep insight into the menace of
ments.

From the time of the Anne
but especially from the Balkan
was clearly to be seen that of
irredentist movements the G
propaganda was the most acti
advanced and the most resolt
been shown that it could not b
by diplomatic means, for despite
promise which Serbia had given
termination of the Annexation crisk
tivate friendly relations with th<
archy, the anti-Austrian propage
bia increased in intensity, an
close of the Balkan wars
greater in extent. It was
prove this by documentary evl
could be perceived from innumera
tions, from the hate-filled words
bian press and from the acti
propaganda in the Western St

-
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perceived this danger, it was almost in the
dark as regarded concrete details. But the
point on which there was absolutely no in-
formation whatsoever was the question,
how far the Governments of Serbia, Russia,
Rumania and Italy stood behind the Irre-
dentist movements in their respective coun-
tries, when the visible exponents of those
movements were represented only by clubs
and individuals. It could not be doubted,
however, that these movements, conducted
in the light of full publicity, had the ap-
proval and support of the respective Gov-
ernments. But there existed no proofs
which could withstand all criticism and
would be absolutely convincing.

Only a few days after the assassination
at Sarajevo it became clear from the judi-
cial investigation that the plot had origi-
nated in Belgrade and that the plotters had
there been equipped with weapons. Subse-
quent evidence led to the establishment of
the fact that Serbian officers and officials
were involved in the plot, and that this plot
had its origin in a great organized move-
ment which embraced all classes of society
in Serbia. The political character of the
murder, its Serbian origin and “Greater
Serbia” motive were beyond doubt .and
could be demonstrated categorically. On
the other hand, there were no proofs as to
whether, and to what extent, the Belgrade
Government had knowledge of the plot,
whether it had any responsibility otherwise,
and in what relation it stood toward the
Greater Serbia movement as such. I repeat
that at that time no one among the influ-
ential authorities of Austria-Hungary
doubted - that the Greater Serbia Irreden-
tist movement was made possible only be-
cause the Serbian Government knew of it
and directed it. But the Foreign Office did
not wish to limit itself to mere conviction;
it wished to know how much thereof was
beyond doubt and absolutely demonstrable,

EVIDENCE GAINED AT SARAJEVO

The object of my mission to Sarajevo was
to clear up this doubtful question. At the
time of my departure, it had been decided
that a very energetic démarche would be
made in Belgrade. For what we knew of
the murder plot against the Austrian heir
to the throne, and what was known other-
wise of the Serbo-Russian plans, showed
beyond all doubt that the Greater Serbia
Irredenta had launched upon a decisive of-
fensive against Austria-Hungary, an offen-
sive demanding a definitive defense. The
Danube Monarchy was forced to deal a
deathblow to Greater Serbia propaganda,
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and thereby show the other three Irredentist
propaganda movements its determination
and readiness to maintain its integrity and
its existence. Count Berchtold wished, in
taking this fateful step, to shape the con-
tent and form of the Austrian demand in
such a way that the charges which he
brought against Serbia should be irrefut-
able. It was my task to ascertain the facts
which would give those charges a sound
foundation.

The evidences which I secured in Sara-
Jjevo had the following result:

1. The Greater Serbia Irredentist move-
ment, which aimed to effect by revolution-
ary methods the forcible separation of the
Southern Slav- region from Austria-Hun-
gary, was conducted from Serbia through
large and influential clubs and other or-
ganizations, notably the “Narodna Od-
brana,” in which influential politicians, for-
mer ministers, high officials and officers
participated. The Belgrade Government
knew of this movement and its organization,
and left it an absolutely free hand. These
facts were demonstrated beyond all ques-
tion and supported by a large amount of
documentary evidence which I brought back
with me from Sarajevo.

2. The assassination was resolved upon
in Belgrade, and prepared with the col-
laboration of Major Tankosich and the
Serbian official Ciganovich, who also de-
livered over weapons for carrying out the
plot and arranged to have the assassing in-
structed in the use of these weapons. The
carrying out of the plot was made possible
only through the fact that the frontier au-
thorities of Shabac and Loznica, according
to information given by the Serbian offi-
cial Ciganovich, with the cooperation of
the Finanzwachorgane (local customs au-
thorities) there, had smuggled the assassing
and their weapons into Bosniza by secret
ways. These facts were demonstrable and
virtually unassailable.

3. On the other hand, there were no
proofs that the Serbian Government had
had previous knowledge of the attentat
or had cooperated in preparing it. If we
wished to assert this, we would have bheen
confronted by the possibility that counter-
arguments would be presented which at
that time could not be refuted, T therefore
'id not assert that the Serbian Government
had any knowledge of the attentat, but only
that such an assumption was not demon-
strable, and was exposed to the possibility
of counter-arguments.

This result of my conclusions at that time
I summarized in my dispatch from Sarajevo

of July 13, 1914 (Red Book, .

accord with the object of my tasli-;' 4

gram was concentrated on the

to what charges against Serhia ‘

brought in such a way as to he j
In order to bring out Precisely t}

points of this question, I baseq the :

on the ideas and expressions y
nomenclature of the Austrian ¢

This dispateh was intended fop D

ficial use, for the Minister ang
timate staff of collaborators, whe
mission exactly, who knew what
say, and who could not misunder,
who did not misunderstand the y
my communication,

REPORT T0 BERCHTOLD

My oral report to Count Berch

morning of July 15, 1914, wag |
more comprehensive than the content

dispateh; it covered numerous de
evidence and reconstructed the
the attentat to our other informa
the Greater Serbia movement,

that movement has been so thor
scribed in the memorandum of
Ministry (Red Bool;, No. 48). C
told had communicated my dispa
Tisza and Count Stiirgh the day 1
therefore in no way did he keep i
Count Tisza, at Count Berchtol
the afternoon of July 15, 1914, T

for almost an hour the whole resul

investigation at Sarajevo and
ings there. I can scarcely know
fluence my report had on Count
asmuch as before my personal co;
with him and specifically the da

had knowledge of my telegram,
the afternoon of the day of July
also learned of the conclusions wh
orally imparted to Count Bercht:

I spoke with him (Count Tisza), b
ready fundamentally convinced th:
tended demands of the ultimatum ¥
pletely covered, and that in a
must advance other and even mo:
ing grounds of suspicion against
conversation with him was, the:

supplementary and recapitulatory

on the basis of which Count Ti
discussion, checked up his attit:
the ultimatum and finally approv

If my dispatch of July 18, 191
pared with the text of the ul
will be demonstrated that the

did not make a single charge tha

beyond what could be strictly
the time and the proof of which

randum presented with all details.

ja in the ultimatum.
+ the note of reservation of the Ameri-
ymination of the Authors of the World

made public from my 336-word dis-

content and sense of my telegram were
oletely distorted and even made to

en that I had declared Serbia to be com-
ely guiltless, while, on the contrary I

serious charges which could be proved
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tely false, as is occasionally as- time this memorandum lay unread also in

nple that Count Berchtold had no suffi- the archives of the Foregn Offices of

. roug ains France and Great Britain), for otherwise
proofs Pt S m Ees bl?l?}ﬁ]gt i}g,i;l:i they would have been bound to notice that
my Sarajevo dispatch did not read like the
version quoted by them.

As is seen from these supplementary ob-
servations, the treatment of Professor
Barnes is correct on all these points and
in accordance with the facts. The charges
which the Austro-Hungarian Government
made against Serbia in the ultimatum were
absolutely unshakable. The demands which
the Vienna Cabinet based on those charges
it was forced to present if it wished to
maintain the State’s existence. Whatever
new facts regarding the Greater Serbia
movement and the Sarajevo assassination
have subsequently been made known only
confirm the view that the Government of
the Danube Monarchy correctly estimateg

: g i Ise quota- the meaning of Serbian Irredentism, an
;t? rﬁ;ﬂéﬁégi};Oghg;zhggcs:rif:aned(ilgga— that the responsibility of the Belgrade Gov-
introduced great confusion into the ernment therefor and for the Sarajevo
on of war guilt and laid on the Gov- assassination extends far beyond _the
nt of the Monarchist régime an ac- charges brought by Vienna at that time.

have arisen only through the fact
elegation to the “Commission for the
and Their Responsibility” reproduced
only thirty-one words, entirely torn

their context, with the result that both

the exact opposite. According to the
on of Messrs. Robert Lansing and
s Brown Scott, the impression was

a very clear statement regarding

ation which was wholly without justifi- From this may be seen the moderation and

. My appeal to Messrs. Lansing and the feeling of responsibili.ty of the Austrian
Scott to clarify the origin of this statesmen who, though fn*rr_lly convinced of
tion has to the present, unfortunately, this deep guilt of the Ser’plan que.rnment
d unanswered. Neither of these two in 1914, did not express this conviction, be-
eémen, however, when they drafted this cause they could not present the striet proof
in April, 1919, had read the memo- thereof to the world,

um of the Vienna Cabinet (at that Vienna, Austria.

Germany’s Reasons for Supporting Her

Ally's Anti-Serb Policy

By GOTTLIEB VON JAGOW

FoRMER GERMAN FOREIGN MINISTER

"HE motives by which Germany’s policy unity chiefly by the common dynasty. “Tu,

Was guided in July, 1914, and the cir- feliz Austria nube!” Tt was a factor of

Nces under which she acted, seem to  wide cultural significance. Intellectual life
0 be correctly set forth in the article of and the civilization of Western Europe were
€Ssor H, B, Barnes, which I have read spread among the aspiring peoples of the
8reat interest, east of our Continent mainly through
Understand those circumstances, we Vienna, which was also an important factor
Mentally reconstruet the political sit-  of European peace. I recall that Sazonov
that Prevailed before the war. The once said to me, after giving vent to his
urg Monarchy stood out as one of the anti-Austrian feelings, and quoting a
of the Great Powers of Europe. It phrase of Napoleon III: “But after all, if
2 stately structure, built up out of the Austria did not exist, we would have to
*Stmark,” based on a long historical create it!” The correctness of this observa-
“OPent, and held together in cohesive tion is demonstrated ex post by the status
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of affairs which arose after the collapse of
the old Empire, and which has not in-
accurately been described as the “Balkan-
ization” of the former Habsburg territories.
The existence of the Austrian Monarchy
was menaced by the “Greater Serbia” aspi-
rations and intrigues. To combat this
danger was the right of a nation fighting
for self-preservation and the duty of the
responsible Austro-Hungarian statesmen.

The German Government, for the sake of
maintaining peace, had hitherto counseled
Vienna to pursue a conciliatory policy and
to seek an understanding with Serbia. The
Austrian memorandum delivered on July 5,
1914, after the assassination of the Aus-
trian heir to the throne, showed the danger
of the situation with convineing clearness.
That the policy of Belgrade aspired to the
creation of a Greater Serbian empire «t
the cost of Austria, has been proved by the
revelations of the secret Serbian' and Rus-
sian documents. In Berlin we never doubted
that the threads of Sarajevo led to Bel-
grade; that the conspiracy which culmi-
nated in the bloody deed was tolerated, if
not furthered, by the Serbian Government.
The confession of Ljuba Jovanovich has
subsequently confirmed this belief.

COGENT REASONS FOR SUPPORTING AUSTRIA

We did not spur Austria on to the action
which she took against Serbia; Austria
reached her decision, which she viewed as
dictated by the law of self-preservation, of
her own accord and without any outside
influence. But we were bound to recognize
Austria’s cause as just. Could we hold back
our ally and leave her in the lurch?

First of all, it was a question of a con-
flict which, in view of the réle of protector
which Russia had assumed over the Balkan
Slavs, might have further European con-
sequences. We strove, therefore, to “local-
ize” the conflict, to prevent its spreading to
other Powers. If Russia, nevertheless,
seized the opportunity to take hostile action
against Austria, the casus foederis became
applicable to us. Our alliance with the

CURRENT HISTORY, JULY, 1928

. .o on the basis of these considera-
e when Vienna communicated to us her
sion to take action against Serbia, we
:d her to act quickly while the shock-
mpression made on the world by the
'ugvo assassination was still fresh in
i f all.

gessg]t was contrary to our hopes.
we had initiated between Petersbhurg
jenna the negotiations which we hoped
1d lead to an agreement, Russia pro-
d to the action which, as she knew,
pound to destroy all hopes of peace—
general mobilization, through which she
threatened us and forced us to draw
e sword in self-defense.

ANY NoT SURE OF BRITISH NEUTRALITY

[ venture to make some observations re-
g one point of Professor Barnes’s
uments. Professor Barnes assumes that
d counted on Great Britain’s neutral-
'his was not the case. Britain’s attitude

jas uncertain.

ons toward France.
wnding in oll cases.
even made this reservation.

war and peace.
ALFRED ZIMMERMAN -

Former Foreign Minister of Gel
‘ Wwanted peace.
ally was fighting for its existence,:
value would the alliance with G
have had for Austria? The alliance
have been terminated; and where
have found amcng the European
Powers another point of supp
would have stood completely isola
the hostile concert of the Entente I
France, Russia, Great Britain. Or
one believe that for our abando
Austria, France would have saeri
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It is true that the British
ment, through the exchange of notes
en Grey and Cambon on Nov. 22-23,
of which we had knowledge through
t sources, had assumed heavy moral
But they were
Grey in his letter
In Great
the Parliament, as the chosen rep-

tative of the people, had to decide
We Popular opinion in
Britain had recently somewhat im-
d in Germany’s favor; the people gen-
Lord Grey himself

.
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says in his Memoirs that an anti-war party
existed in Parliament and even in the
Cabinet. In Part I, page 812, he writes:

I knew it to be very doubtful whether the
Cabinet, Parliament and the country would
take this view on the outbreak of the war
(sc., that the interest of Britain required
that we should not stand aside, while
France fought alone in the West, but must
support her).

Further, on pp. 335-36, he writes:

The notion of being involved in war about
a Balkan quarrel was repugnant. . . . If
France were involved, it would not be in
any quarrel in which we owed her good-
will, as in the Moroccan disputes. It would
indeed not be in any quarrel of her own at
all; it would be because she, as Russia’s
ally, had the misfortune to be involved in a
Russian quarrel, in which France had no
direct interest and which did not arouse
feeling in the French people. What,
it was asked, was the good of keeping so
carefully clear of alliances and obligations
if we were to be drawn into European war
in such a quarrel as this? Such I
felt to be how the situation was viewed _by
numbers of people, and I knew the desire
to keep out of war to be very widespread
and strong.

If even Sir E. Grey had such doubts, it
was quite comprehensible that we in Berlin
should be torn between pessimistic fears
and optimistic hopes regarding Great Brit-
ain’s attitude. Many important considera-
tions indicated that Great Britain would
not enter the war, at least not at its incep-
tion. But we never counted firmly on Great
Britain’s neutrality. Decisive for our at-
titude were the reasons why we could not
leave our Austrian ally in the lurch.

Berlin, Germany. i

B\ i Fatelul Decibions Reachad
4 Independently

‘ By ALFRED ZIMMERMAN

FoORMER GERMAN UNDER SECRETARY OF STATE

Danube Monarchy had existed for three
decades; it had been made public and was
generally known. It imposed on us stip-
ulated obligations, just as the Franco-
Russian treaty imposed similar obligations
on the two respective parties. But not only
bacause of these covenanted obligations, but
also because of our own position and pres-
tige, we could not, in any war between
Austria and the Great Power of the East
[Russia], leave Austria in the lurch. Had
we refused our help at a moment when our

consigned to oblivion her desires for H
vanche,” Great Britain her distru
navy and her commercial rivalry,
her Pan-Slavic movement of expa ,

Great tension prevailed all over |
But trusting in the love of peace S
asserted by the Powers, and in

danger of a European war, I was for a
prompt action against Serbia, as I believed
that in view of the terrible crime of Sara-
jevo, and the then universal sympathy with
Austria, Russia and France would abstain
from interfering. But I cannot confirm
the supposition that I believed Germany
and Austria quite capable of defeating any
potential enemies in the event of a Euro-
pean war. Knowing already at that time
the secret engagements of the British For-
eign Offiee to France and Russia, I had

~4 artiele written by Professor Harry
‘rElmer Barnes on the relations and
T onges between Germany and Austria
4 has highly interested me. I beg to
€ following remarks with regard to
Atements .
Quite correct that Herr von Beth-
that they would not close their ey . Hollweg and the Kaiser felt certain
justice of Austria’s cause, we log 300 Austrian war on Serbia would not
ward to the success of our efforts i ikely +, produce a European war, but
the Austro-Hungarian conflict and: L wa rather more pessimistic in this

vent a general conflagration. E =4 Precisely in order to avoid the
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very serious reasons for not counting on
the neutrality of Great Britain in case of
war with. France and Russia.

The Austrian statesmen rightly admit
that their appeal to Germany and their
ultimatum to Serbia were formulated by
the Austrians quite independently of any
German participation, that the ultimatum
was submitted without giving Germany
adequate advance knowledge or asking her
for advice on the subject, and that in decid-
‘ing to reject the Serbian answer and to
make war on Serbia, Austria acted on her
own responsibility. The TFranco-Russian
allegation that Austrian policy as to Serbia

VII—Statement by the Former Emper“
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was originated by and forced up,
by Germany is absolutely false,

I fully agree, on the other
declarations made to Professop
the Kaiser, the Crown Prince
von Jagow.

The three “major counts” agaj
many I am sorry not to be able to:

upon, as I have not at hand th
to peruse them.

Permit me to add that I highl
and appreciate the most valuable ¢
Professor Barnes to clear up the
of responsibility for the World Wap.

Berlin, Germany.

Germany

In reply to the Editor’s request of the
former German Emperor to comment on
Professor Barnes’s article, the following
communication, transmitted through the
“Acting Chief of the Household of H. 1. M.,”
was received:

B Y COMMAND of H. I. M. the Emperor
I have the honour to inform you con-
cerning your request of Feb. 28 that
H. I. M., after studying Professor Barnes’s
excellent essav, finds that this eminent his-

VIII—Germany’s Responsibility No.

Diminished by

By

THE cpening paragraph of Professor
H. E. Barnes’s article on Germany and
Austria in 1914 contains the statement that
during Professor Barnes’s visit to Europe
in the Summers of 1926 and 1927 he suc-
ceeded in obtaining a “considerable body of
revolutionary evidence” which “will clear
up for all time” some of the problems of
the responsibility for the World War. The
present writer fears that the hopes raised
by this promise still remain unfulfilled.
The new evidence is in the nature of pres-
ent-day statements by former leaders of
Austrian and German polities interpreting
the situation as they look back upon it now.

B

torian has treated the questio

Austro-German relations in such

clear and exhaustive way, that
left to be added or said. '

H. I. M., therefore, in thankin
your kind offer, will refrain fro
any
Barnes’s essay.

(Signed) AcTING CHIEF OF TH

HoLD OF H. L
Haus Doorn, April 5, 1928.

New FEvidence
MICHAEL .T. FLORINSKY !

DivisioN oF HISTORY AND ECONOMICS, THE CARNEGIE ENDOWMENT FOR INTERNATION‘_ s

historical evidence is never accep
scientific historian as sufficient
It may be legitimate as an in
of facts and documents otherwise
us. But the historian’s task iS ¥
cept these statements as.ew cal
necessarily true, because the auth
actors in the scene, but at leas
them to an impartial analysis for
reason. It is in this spirit thab
consider the new evidence produce
fessor Barnes.

The leading actors on the Aust
in the drama of July, 1914—Cott

hand,

remarks or additions to P
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THE EX-KAISER WILHELM

N

old, Count Hoyos and Dr. vou Wiesner—
ndorse the already familiar theory that
ria must rest her case before the bar
torical judgment solely upon the ac-
y of her major contention that the
bian menace threatened the very integ-
of the Dual Monarchy and could not
ceessfully withstood except through a
. litive war against the Serbs or complete
an acquiescence in the ultimatum of
¥ 23, 1914. They admitted frankly that
¥ foresaw the possibility of a European
arising out of such action, though they
Dot believe such conditions probable.
i they felt it better to accept the chance
European war than to face what
d to them certain ruin if they failed to
€Dt the Serbian challenge.” This con-
SO, in the opinion of Professor Barnes,
Teasonable and just when viewed from
S Austrian angle.”
€ explanation of so lenient a treat-
of Austria-Hungary, which, in fact,
Ng short of a complete exoneration,
e found in the assertion that m July,
€ Austrian Government had in its
conclusive evidence of the participa-
' Serbia in the Sarajevo murder and
o existence of an anti-Austrian Russo-
4N plot, This evidence consisted of:
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(1) the telegraphic report of Dr. von Wies-
ner, supplemented by his detailed oral re-
port; (2) a number of secret telegrams ex-
changed between Belgrade and St. Peters-
burg and intercepted by the Austrian For-
eign Office; they established that “Hart-
wig, the Russian Minister in Serbia, was
pursuing an authorized policy in directing
the Russo-Balkan plots at the expense of
Austria.” Let us consider each of these
points.

1—Von Wiesner’s telegraphic report, which
contained little that would justify the dras-
tic action taken against Serbia (Berchtold
himself seems to imply this by emphasizing
the importance of von Wiesner’s oral re-
port), was sent from Sarajevo on July 13
at 1:10 P. M. It closed with the announce-
ment of von Wiesner’s departure for Vienna
in the evening of the same day. It seems
extremely unlikely that in the few hours
which von Wiesner spent in Serbia after
the dispatch of his report he obtained evi-
dence which would induce him to change
any of his fundamental conclusions, nor
does Berchtold or von Wiesner disclose that
any such evidence actually came to his
knowledge. It may be assumed, therefore,
that von Wiesner’s oral report was a mere
elaboration, however valuable and interest-
ing, of the conclusions he telegraphed from
Sarajevo, and it is difficult to see how it
could produce the effect attributed to it by
Berchtold. These conclusions, it will be re-
membered, were that, while the assassins
had been helped by Serbian accomplices,
“there is nothing to show the complicity of
the Serbian Government, * * * nor is
there anything to lead one even to conjec-
ture such a thing. On the contrary, there
is evidence to show that such complicity
is out of the question.” The “revisionists”
have tried to explain away this funda-
mental” document by adducing other data
not known at the time of the investigation,
but the fact is that they were not known
then, and that the official report was so
unsatisfactory to Berchtold that he did
not publish it. The statement that Berch-
told did not “suppress” the report but
merely “filed it awaiting the return of his
commissioner with the full oral report”
seems to deal rather with words than with
facts. As long as the report was withheld
what does it matter whether we call it sup-
pression or filing? But why was it filed?
If the oral report incriminated Serbia, why
did not Berchtold make more use of it to
win over Tisza? The historian 1s not so
much interested in what Berchtold makes
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today of his impressions of the oral report
as in what use he made of them then.

2—Let us now take up the Russian tele-
grams intercepted by the Austrian Foreign
Office and regarded by it in 1914 “ag
more vital and more incriminating with re-
spect to Serbia than the report of Dr. von
Wiesner.” We are told that in the Summer
of 1914 the source of this information could
not be disclosed for “apparent” reasons. It
is to be regretted that Berchtold did not
explain why, fourteen years after the out-
break of the war, they still remain unpub-
lished, and why Austrian statesmen have
never placed before the bar o history what
they consider a vital piece of evidence for
their defense. Surely, the “apparent” rea-
sons (the writer confesses that he is at a
loss as to what they are) which explain Aus-
tria’s commendable discretion in 1914 ave
no longer valid. It may be remembered
that not the slightest reference to the Russo-
Serbian plot is made in Franz J oseph’s auto-
graph and strictly confidential letter to
William and the attached memorandum
which were taken by Hoyos to Berlin on
July 4, and which set forth the case for
Austria (Austrian Red Book, Vol. I, No. I).
Nor does it appear from Count Czernin’s
memoirs that he was aware of any such
plot.

Russia’s DIPLOMACY IN BELGRADE.

We are also informed that the archives
of Moscow have been examined by Dr. M.
Bogitschevich and that they contain most
damaging evidence as to the sinister part
played by Russia in the Balkans, The
archives of Moscow arve, unfortunately, in-
accessible to the present writer, but he ex-
amined the documents published by the So-
viet Government as recently as 1925 and
1926 (Krasny Avrkhiv, Vols. VIII, IX, XV
and’ XVI) and dealing with The Prepara-
tion. for the Balkan War and The First
Ballkan War. They cover a number of years
and include numerous dispatches from
Hartwig. The editors of the collection state
in the preface that the documents have been
specially selected in order to expose the
treacherous and militaristic policy of the
Imperial Russian Government, In spite of
this, they contain nothing “revolutionary”
and certainly do not corroborate the state-
ment of Berchtold. The writer, therefore,
cannot help but feel that the statement of
Dr. Bogitschevich should be accepted with
some caution, and at least has no documen-
tary proof to sustain it.

As to the “authorized policy” of Hartwig,
we fortunately have the authoritative evi-
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dence of M. Sazonov himself,
in his memoirs (Fateful y,
1928) on the difficulties he en
1912-1913 in his endeavor to 4
national aspirations of Serbia,
warmly supported by an infly, ki
Russian public opinion “which
cused Russian diplomacy of hie
(p. 74), M. Sazonoy writes ag
problem was stil] further o
the fact that even in Serbia
not always find that self-cont:
estimate of the dangers of
which alone could avert a catast
To my mind, the Serbian attitude
accounted for by the fact that M
our Minister to Belgrade, pre
agreeable réle of countenanciy
gerated attitude adopted by
and social cireles in Belgrade,
grateful one which he should
in the true interest of Serbia, * #
wig interpreted Russian policy in F
according to his own taste, |
greatly added to my difficult
And again: “* * * Tha o
Russian Minister in Belgrade j
Serbian aspirations * * * plac
sian Government in an awkw
(p. 82). The actual relatio
Hartwig and Sazonov is made el
remarks. In private conversation
present writer M. Sazonov w:
outspoken. Sazonov’s account
policy in Serbia will be found
He frankly criticizes the réle ¢
who, unfortunately, could not
as a result of his exceptional
Belgrade and his popularity
ential body of public opinion
much for the Russo-Balkan plo
The interesting problem of
exerted by Germany on the pol
tria is a good example of the
tion one should exercise in inte
hoc evidence of responsible lead
told and his associates maintain
the support of Germany had
on July 5 communications from
practically no influence on the
This is one of those half-truths
of which may easily be detecte
are bound to find themselves
with undeniable facts.

GERMANY’S “FREE HAND” TO
There is little doubt that
factor in the relation betv.ve,
and Austria was the commitm

into on July 5 and 6 by the Go
Berlin to lend its unreserved

MICHAEL T. FLORINSKY

overnment of Vienna “whatever Aus-
decision may turn out to be.” In
ther place (The Genesis of the World
w, 1926, p. 185) Professor Barnes de-
es this decision—and not too strongly.—
oolish and ill-advised.” Having thx's
dssurance of Germany’s support, to which it
rigorously adhering, Berchtold may
& maintain with a fair degree o sin-
1ty that the subsequent policy of Berlin
 relatively little effect upon him. This,
Ver, does not prove that the views of
hielmstrasse did not influence the policy
Ballplatz. If Germany, instead of foster-
 the agoressive policy of Vienna, had
€red counsels of moderation, would it
€en entirely disregarded? One may
@llowed to doubt this. From evidence
1 a5 the outspoken memoirs of Conrad
0 Hotzendort it appears that the War
¥ in Vienna considered the support of
4ny among its chief trumps, and was
10 meang indifferent to repeated assur-
> of such support which were forth-
& from Berlin. It exercised a strong
Uence upon public opinion. Are all

factors to be ignored? ;
i ST is, furthermore, at least one piece
L rect evidence to show that on this
8lon Berchtold’s memory is failing him.
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One should remember that in the first part
of July the policy of Austria in Serbia was
not yet definitely settled. There was still
one obstacle to overcome—the opposition of
Count Tisza, the only statesman in Vienna
who realized all the danger of the situation.
In order to triumph over his resistance
Berchtold naturally used his major card,
the friendly advices and information which
were showered on him from Berlin. “Tschir-
schky has just left me,” wrote Berchtold to
Tisza on July 8, “and told me that he h'ad
received a telegram from Berlin by which
his imperial master instructed him to de-
clare that in Berlin an action of the
monarchy against Serbia is fully expected,
and that Germany could not understand
why we should neglect this opportunity of
dealing a blow. * * * Tschirschky’s re-
marks impressed me so much that I thought
they might in some degree influence your
ultimate decision, and for this reason I am
informing you without delay.” (Austrian
Red Book, Vol. I, No. 10.) Is this com-
patible with Berchtold’s recent pronounce-
ment that “the bellicosity which Tschir-
schky had shown up to this time [the end of
July] had exerted no practical effect upon
Austrian policy?” Count Montgelas hgs
attempted to prove that Berchtold }}ad mis-
understood Tschirschky. This opinion may
or may not be accepted, but the fac.t re-
mains that Berchtold used what he believed
to be, or represented to be, the wishes of
Berlin, in order to win over Tisza. Was
Berlin of no importance to Berchtold on
July 8? t

AUSTRIAN DIPLOMATS OPTIMISM

It may be plausibly argued that Berch-
told did not realize the full consequences
of the action he was taking in Serbia, gl-
though, as he himself admits, he was will-
ing to face a European war rather than to
abandon his anti-Serbian schemes. And it
is from Berchtold’s own point of view t}mt
the choice of his conversation with Dumaine,
the French Ambassador, on July 22, as an
evidence in his favor is particularly unfor-
tunate. To begin with, the first half of §he
official Austrian report of the conversa'glon
(Austrian Red Book, Vol._I, No.“53) gives
little ground for optimism. He [the
French Ambassador] discussed all the
eventualities which might 1'esult' from an
energetic step on our [Austrian] §1de
toward the Cabinet of Belgrade, and paint-
ed the dangers resulting from a war be-
tween Austria-Hungary and Serbia in crude
[dark? M. F.] colors calling attention to the
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fact that it might become a war of the
Slav races against the monarchy.” Is this
an optimistic outlook? And then the view
of Schebeko, the Russian Ambassador, and,
probably, the account of his conversation
with him given by Dumaine, have been
misrepresented in the Austrian report.
What Schebeko and Dumaine actually
thought of the situation is clearly stated in
a communication of Sir Maurice de Bunsen,
dated July 5, 1914:

‘“He [Schebeko] cannot believe that the
country [Austria] will allow itself to be
rushed into war, for an isolated combat
with Serbia would be impossible, as Russia
would be compelled to take up arms in de-
fense of Serbia. Of this there could be no
question. * * * M, Dumaine is full of seri-
ous apprehensions. * * * He has repeat-
edly spoken to me during the past week on
the danger of the situation, which, he fears,
may develop rapidly into complications from
which war might easily arise.” (British
Documents, No. 40.)

It appears from the same communication
that Schebeko’s optimism was based on the
belief that anti-Serbian feelings in Austria
were limited to the upper classes and that
this would exercise a moderating influence
on the Austrian Government. That Sche-
beko’s views did not change between July
5 and 22 may be seen from Dumaine’s own
report of his conversation with Schebeko,
referred to by Berchtold. “The Russian
Ambassador,” wrote Dumaine on July 22,
“has confided to me that his Government
will not raise any objection to steps directed
toward the punishment of the guilty and the
dissolution of societies which are notoriously
revolutionary, but could not accept require-
ments which would humiliate Serbian na-
tional feelings.” (French Yellow Book, No.
18.) Is it not clear that the opinions of the
French, and especially of the Russian Am-
bassadors, have either been misunderstood
or misrepresented by Count Berchtold? As
to a British diplomat’s statement to the
Neue Freie Presse [after the publication of
the ultimatum], how could such a statement,
even if it was actually given out by this
diplomat, carry any real weight when con-
fronted with Sir Edward Grey’s unreserved
condemnation of the ultimatum as a “most
formidable document”? (British Docu-
ments, No, 19.) Foreign divlomats in Vi-
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enna were left completely in the das
the proposed course of Austrig
and found it difficult to keep in toy,
Berchtold. (See British Docume

40, 56.) What Berchtold is please
scribe as their optimism was due 1
reluctance to admit that Austria wo
a step which would lead the Europe’
to its doom, and not their ignorane
“secret” policy of their respectiv
ments.

TERRITORIAL INTEGRITY OF SERBY,

Just a word about Count Szapa;
We know now that the suspicions o
nov as to the sincerity of Aust
ances that the territorial integrity
bia would be respected were not
devoid of foundation. The decisior
Council of Ministers held in
July 19, after proclaiming the al
intention on the part of Austria
its territory at the expense of Serb
the following reservation: “Of
strategieally necessary corrections
tiers and the reduction of Serbia’s 1
to the advantage of other States,
avoidable temporary occupation
territory, is not precluded by thi:
tion.” (Austrian Red Book, Vol.
This reservation gave Austria,
victory, almost a free hand in de
Serbia. Could this be accepted b
And is it possible to maintain that
was honestly determined to “respec
ritorial integrity of Serbia”?

Lack of space prevents the w
undertaking more detailed exami
the evidence produced by Profess
From what has been said abo
perhaps be justified in concludin
post hoc explanations of Austrian
man statesmen, however int
themselves, add little to our kno
the fundamental problems of fche
bility for the war. The exis
Russo-Balkan plot is still to be pro’
Professor Bernadotte Schmitt’s ver
holds good: “Whether the Ge
ernment fully realized the conse
its reckless (but deliberate) actio
debated, but its responsibility for
course of action is overwhelming
RENT HISTORY, December 1927, p.



